
Founded in 1911 by a vote of the people as a special purpose government, the Port of Seattle’s mission is to promote economic opportunities 
and quality of life in the region by advancing trade, travel, commerce, and job creation 

 in an equitable, accountable, and environmentally responsible manner. 

COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
February 27, 2024 
To be held virtually via MS Teams and in person at the Seattle-Tacoma International 
Airport – Conference Center, International Room, located at 17801 International 
Blvd, Seattle WA, Mezzanine Level.  You may view the full meeting live at 
meetings.portseattle.org. To listen live, call in at +1 (425) 660-9954 or (833) 209-2690 
and Conference ID 859 194 958# 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
10:30 a.m. 
1. CALL TO ORDER
2. EXECUTIVE SESSION – if necessary, pursuant to RCW 42.30.110 (executive sessions are not open to the
public)

► 12:00 noon – PUBLIC SESSION
Reconvene or Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

3. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA (at this time, commissioners may reorder, add, or remove items from the
agenda)

4. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY
4a. Proclamation in Honor of Black History Month. (proclamation distributed under separate cover)

5. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
6. COMMITTEE REPORTS
7. PUBLIC COMMENT – procedures available online at https://www.portseattle.org/page/public-comment-port-
commission-meetings

During the regular order of business, those wishing to provide public comment (in accordance with the 
Commission’s bylaws) on Commission agenda items or on topics related to the conduct of Port business will 
have the opportunity to: 
1) Deliver public comment via email: All written comments received by email to commission-public-
records@portseattle.org will be distributed to commissioners and attached to the approved minutes.
2) Deliver public comment via phone or Microsoft Teams conference: To take advantage of this option,
please email commission-public-records@portseattle.org with your name and agenda item or topic related to the
conduct of Port business you wish to speak to by 9:00 a.m. PT on Tuesday, February 27, 2024. (Please be
advised that public comment is limited to agenda items and topics related to the conduct of Port business
only.)  You will then be provided with instructions and a link to join the Teams meeting.
3) Deliver public comment in person by signing up to speak on your arrival to the physical meeting
location:  To take advantage of this option, please arrive at least 15 minutes prior to the start of any regular
meeting to sign-up on the public comment sheet available at the entrance to the meeting room to speak on
agenda items and topics related to the conduct of Port business.
For additional information, please contact commission-public-records@portseattle.org. 

mailto:commission-public-records@portseattle.org?subject=PUBLIC%20COMMENT%20for%20October%2027,%202020
mailto:commission-public-records@portseattle.org?subject=PUBLIC%20COMMENT%20for%20October%2027,%202020
mailto:commission-public-records@portseattle.org
mailto:commission-public-records@portseattle.org?subject=QUESTIONS%20about%20October%2027%20Meeting


PRELIMINARY AGENDA – Port of Seattle Commission Regular Meeting of February 27, 2024 Page 2 of 2 

Commissioners:   Ryan Calkins  ■ Sam Cho  ■ Fred Felleman  ■ Toshiko Hasegawa  ■ Hamdi Mohamed         Executive Director:   Stephen P. Metruck 
To contact commissioners: 206-787-3034    For meeting records and information: commission-public-records@portseattle.org    206-787-3210 

www.portseattle.org 

8. CONSENT AGENDA (consent agenda items are adopted by one motion without discussion)
8a. Approval of Minutes of the Special Meetings of February 7 and February 8, 2024; and the Regular Meeting

of February 13, 2024. (p.3) 

8b. Commission Authorization for $700,000 in Additional Funds to Support Costs Associated with the Current 
Approved Port of Seattle’s Lease and Occupancy of the SeaTac Office Center for Contract Payments 
Through the Remainder of the Current Lease Term. (memo and lease enclosed) 

8c. Commission Approval of the Port’s 2024 International Policy Agenda and Directing the Executive Director to 
Authorize Staff to Engage in Advocacy Efforts to Support Implementation of These Policy Priorities. 
(memo and presentation enclosed) 

10. NEW BUSINESS
10a. Order No. 2024-04:  An Order Setting a Timeline for the Completion of the Assessment of Prior Sound

Insulated Properties; Creating a Sound Insulation Repair and Replacement Pilot Program; and Setting 
Equity Guidelines for this Program.  (order enclosed)  

10b. Introduction of Resolution No. 3819: A Resolution Adopting the 2021 Editions of the International, Building, 
Mechanical, Fire, Energy Conservation and Fuel Gas Codes; the 2021 Edition of the Uniform Plumbing 
Code; and the Editorial Changes Made to the State Building Code by the Washington State Legislature; 
and Repealing Resolution No. 3783, as Amended. (memo, draft resolution, presentation enclosed)  

11. PRESENTATIONS AND STAFF REPORTS

12. QUESTIONS on REFERRAL to COMMITTEE and CLOSING COMMENTS

13. ADJOURNMENT

(p.16)

(p.96)

(p.107)

(p.109)

https://meetings.portseattle.org/portmeetings/attachments/2024/2024_02_27_RM_8b_Memo_STOC-Port-Leases-and-CAM-Expenses.pdf
https://meetings.portseattle.org/portmeetings/attachments/2024/2024_02_27_RM_8b_Attachment_STOC-Port-Leases-and-CAM-Expenses.pdf
https://meetings.portseattle.org/portmeetings/attachments/2024/2024_02_27_RM_8c_Memo_2024-International-Agenda-Adoption.pdf
https://meetings.portseattle.org/portmeetings/attachments/2024/2024_02_27_RM_8c_Presentation_2024-International-Agenda-Adoption.pdf
https://meetings.portseattle.org/portmeetings/attachments/2024/2024_02_27_RM_10a_Order_Sound-Insulation-Repair-and-Replacement.pdf
https://meetings.portseattle.org/portmeetings/attachments/2024/2024_02_27_RM_10b_Memo_2021-Building-Codes.pdf
https://meetings.portseattle.org/portmeetings/attachments/2024/2024_02_27_RM_10b_Attachment_2021-Building-Codes.pdf
https://meetings.portseattle.org/portmeetings/attachments/2024/2024_02_27_RM_10b_Presentation_2021-Building-Codes.pdf


Digital recordings of the meeting proceedings and meeting materials are available online – www.portseattle.org. 

APPROVED MINUTES 
COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING FEBRUARY 7, 2024 

The Port of Seattle Commission met in a special meeting Wednesday, February 7, 2024. The 
meeting was held at the Meydenbayer Center, Central Hall A, 11100 NE 6th Street, Bellevue, 
Washington.  Commissioners Calkins, Cho, Felleman, Hasegawa, and Mohamed were present. 

CALL to ORDER 
Pursuant to RCW 42.30 and Article IV, Section 8, of the commission bylaws, the meeting convened 
at 7:30 a.m. for the purpose of presenting the ‘State of the Port.’ 

This meeting was held on location only and no action was taken.  

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:30 a.m. 

Prepared: Attest: 
. 

Michelle M. Hart, Commission Clerk Ryan Calkins, Commission Secretary 

Minutes approved: February 27, 2024. 

P.O. Box 1209 
Seattle, Washington  98111 

www.portseattle.org 
206.787.3000 

003

http://www.portseattle.org/


Digital recordings of the meeting proceedings and meeting materials are available online – www.portseattle.org. 

APPROVED MINUTES 
COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING FEBRUARY 8, 2024 

The Port of Seattle Commission met in a special meeting Thursday, February 8, 2024. The meeting 
was held at the Port of Seattle Headquarters Building, Conf Rm. 3CC01 and the Commission 
Chambers, located at: 2711 Alaskan Way, Seattle, Washington. Commissioners Calkins, Cho, 
Felleman, and Mohamed were present.  Commissioner Hasegawa was absent and excused from 
the meeting. 

CALL to ORDER 
Pursuant to RCW 42.30 and Article IV, Section 8, of the commission bylaws, the meeting convened 
at 8:30 a.m. for the purpose of holding a planning and organizing retreat. 

Summary and Themes: 

Pre-retreat main topics discussed: 
• NWSA relationship and processes;
• transportation;
• workforce development; and
• Government to Government partnerships and funding processes.

The Port needs to continue to evaluate and address issues surrounding capacity and efficiency. 

Commissioner retreat requests and staff action items: 
• General Request(s)

o Reorganize Executive Director priorities to reflect how they connect to the Century
Agenda.

• External Relations Requests:
o Determine the ability to combine/integrate the SEA app with Delta, Alaska, and other

apps for streamlining purposes.  Chris Guizlo, Communications and Marketing Program
Manager, will provide more information.

• Community Relations:
o Request to create more flexibility to provide boat tours.
o Community Engagement for K-12 students – Look to create or implement engagement

with school districts for field trips that can expose youth to the maritime and other port
industries.  This action should extend to tribal governments to enhance engagement
and outreach with tribal youth and introduce them to port related industries and
workforce.

o The Commission would like to see a Tribal engagement strategy.

P.O. Box 1209 
Seattle, Washington  98111 

www.portseattle.org 
206.787.3000 

004

http://www.portseattle.org/


PORT COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES Page 2 of 2 
FEBRUARY 8, 2024 
 

Minutes of November 17, 2020, submitted for review on December 3, 2020, and proposed for approval on December 8, 2020. 
Minutes of October 27, 2020, submitted for review on November 5, 2020, and proposed for approval on November 10, 2020. 

o Request to bring back the port tour program.  
 

• Maritime 
o Maritime capital delivery and development status reporting. 
o Request to break-out the NWSA and Port of Seattle priorities, funding, and key 

performance indicators to get a better understanding of where there are issues.   
  

• Commission Office 
o Century Agenda evaluation - Request to develop a process to reevaluate the Century 

Agenda goals and objectives.  Commission Chief of Staff Aaron Pritchard will develop a 
path forward and present it to Commissioners. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 3:47 p.m. 
 
 
Prepared:     Attest: 
. 
 
         
Michelle M. Hart, Commission Clerk  Ryan Calkins, Commission Secretary 
 
 
Minutes approved: February 27, 2024. 
 

005



Digital recordings of the meeting proceedings and meeting materials are available online – www.portseattle.org. 
 
 

 

 
   
 
 
 
 

APPROVED MINUTES 
COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

February 13, 2024 
The Port of Seattle Commission met in a regular meeting Tuesday, February 13, 2024. The meeting 
was held at the Port of Seattle Headquarters Building, Commission Chambers, 2711 Alaskan Way, 
Seattle Washington, and virtually on Microsoft Teams.  Commissioners Calkins, Cho, Felleman, and 
Mohamed were present.  Commissioner Hasegawa was absent and excused from attendance.   
 
1. CALL to ORDER 
The meeting was convened at 10:31 a.m. by Commission Secretary Ryan Calkins.   
 
2. EXECUTIVE SESSION pursuant to RCW 42.30.110  
The public meeting recessed into executive session to discuss one item regarding collective 
bargaining negotiations, per RCW 42.30.140(4) and one item regarding national security per  
RCW 42.30.110(1)(a)(i) for approximately 60 minutes, with the intention of reconvening the public 
session at 12:00 p.m.  Following the executive session, the public meeting reconvened at 12:05 p.m. 
Commission President Mohamed led the flag salute.   
 
3. APPROVAL of the AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as amended, with Agenda Item 8i removed from the Consent Agenda to 
be addressed separately and Agenda Item 10b removed and moved to the February 27, 2024, 
Commission meeting, without objection.  
 
In favor: Calkins, Cho, Felleman, and Mohamed (4)  
Opposed: (0) 
 
4. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY  
 
4a. Proclamation in Recognition of the ‘Boldt Decision’ Federal Landmark Ruling Affirming 

Tribal’s Sovereignty Rights of Fishing in Washington State.  
 
Request document(s) included a proclamation. 
 
Presenter(s):  

Chelsea Cannon Rodriguez, Airport Volunteers and Customer Accessibility Manager, Kiowa 
Tribe of Oklahoma 

P.O. Box 1209 
Seattle, Washington  98111 

www.portseattle.org 
206.787.3000 

006

http://www.portseattle.org/


PORT COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES Page 2 of 10 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2024  
 

Minutes of October 27, 2020, submitted for review on November 5, 2020, and proposed for approval on November 10, 2020. 

Brian Newman, Facilities Project Manager, Waterfront Project Management, Haida and 
Tsimshian of Alaska 

Marie Bell, Asset Management Analyst, Aviation Maintenance, Tlingit Tribe of Alaska 
Tonisha Simmons, Financial Analyst, Aviation Finance & Budget, Aleut of Alaska 
Roxanne Murphy, Senior Manager, Tribal Relations, Nooksack Tribe of Washington State 
 

Clerk Hart read Item 4a into the record. 
 
The order was read into the record by members of the Port’s Native American Committee Employee 
Resource Group. 
 
Members of the Commission spoke in support of the proclamation, remembering and honoring the 
anniversary of the Boldt decision and the actions taken to secure and reaffirming tribal sovereignty 
rights of fishing in Washington State.  
 
The motion, made by Commissioner Felleman carried by the following vote:  
In favor: Calkins, Cho, Felleman, and Mohamed (4)  
Opposed: (0) 
 
5. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
Executive Director Metruck previewed items on the day’s agenda and made general and meeting-
related announcements. 
 
6. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Commission Strategic Advisor Erica Chung provided committee reports. 
 
Highline Forum 
The first Highline Forum meeting of the year was held January 24, 2024, with Commissioner 
Felleman chairing.  The main focus of the meeting was review of the top issues from each of the nine 
Forum members’ 2024 State Legislative Agendas, including Highline College, Highline School 
District, cities of Tukwila, SeaTac, Normandy Park, Federal Way, Des Moines, Burien, and the Port 
of Seattle.  Common issues among the Forum members included: funding options; workforce 
development; support for funding behavioral health services and facilities; helping to facilitate the 
funding and recruitment of public safety professionals; legislation concerning aviation impacts on 
near-airport communities; funding and guidance on addressing the large influx of asylum seekers 
and immigrants; bills to enhance tourism and tourism promotion; and various capital budget requests.  
Members also received updates from Chipper Maney, Aviation Natural Resources Program Manager 
on Aviation Land Stewardship Plan and Tree Replacement Standards for Commission consideration 
in March 2024 and Aviation Managing Director Lyttle on December 2023 StART meeting focused on 
the start of the process for a new Part 150 noise study.  Members further selected the Forum’s 
Community Co-Chair for 2024 – Des Moines Councilmember Matt Mahoney. 
 
Equity and Workforce Development Committee 
On January 26, Commissioners Hasegawa and Calkins convened the Equity and Workforce 
Development Committee.  There were two items for briefing and discussion: a review of the proposed 
Equity and Workforce Development Committee workplan for 2024 and a high-level preview from 

007



PORT COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES Page 3 of 10 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2024  
 

Minutes of October 27, 2020, submitted for review on November 5, 2020, and proposed for approval on November 10, 2020. 

Economic Development Division, the Office of Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion, and the Workforce 
Development team on what the teams will be working on in 2024.    
 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT 
• The following person spoke in support of Agenda Item 10a, the 2024 Economic Development 

Partnership Program and the benefits it has to the City of Bothell: Jeanie Ashe.  
• The following people spoke in support of Agenda Item 10b, Order No. 2024-04 (removed from 

the agenda and scheduled for the February 27, 2024, meeting), regarding creating a sound 
insulation repair and replacement pilot program: Denise Utley (written comments also submitted); 
Traci Buxton, City of Des Moines Mayor; and JC Harris, City of Des Moines Councilmember. 

• The following person spoke in opposition to Agenda Item 8i, 2024/25 Tourism Marketing Grant 
Program, stating that the program will increase airplane travel climate impacts: Elizabeth Burton 
(written comments also submitted). 

• The following person spoke regarding the Commission’s change to its bylaws applicable to public 
comment rules of participation: Alex Tsimerman. 

• The following people spoke in support of Agenda Item 8g, the collective bargaining agreement 
for airport duty managers and spoke regarding pay equity: Matthew Fink, Nicole Grant, and  
Katie Garrow.  

• In lieu of spoken comment, the following persons submitted written comments in support of 
Agenda Item 10a: James Henderson; Janet Quinn; Derek Speck; Kimberly Ellertson; Michelle 
Evans; Jen Davis Hayes; and Nicole Wiebe. 

• In lieu of spoken comment, the following persons submitted written comments in support of 
Agenda Item 10b: Sharyn Parker and Senayet Negusse. 
 
[Clerk’s Note: All written comments are combined and attached here as Exhibit A.] 
 

8. CONSENT AGENDA 
[Clerk’s Note: Items on the Consent Agenda are not individually discussed. Commissioners may 
remove items for separate discussion and vote when approving the agenda.] 
 
8a. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 23, 2024.  
 
8b. Approval of the Claims and Obligations for the Period January 1, 2024, through 

January 31, 2024, Including Accounts Payable Check Nos. 951695 through 952114 in 
the Amount of $12,421,331.89 Accounts Payable ACH Nos. 062391 through 063490 in 
the Amount of $62,451,681.93; Accounts Payable Wire Transfer Nos. 016216 through 
016246 in the Amount of $15,962,059.71; Payroll Check Nos. 210787 through 211164 
in the Amount of $107,636.72; and Payroll ACH Nos. 1174981 through 1179747 in the 
Amount of $15,384,526.63 for a Fund Total of $106,327,236.88. 

 
Request document(s) included an agenda memorandum. 
 
8c. Monthly Notification of Prior Executive Director Delegation Actions January 2024. 
 
Request document(s) included an agenda memorandum. 
 

008



PORT COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES Page 4 of 10 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2024  
 

Minutes of October 27, 2020, submitted for review on November 5, 2020, and proposed for approval on November 10, 2020. 

8d. Commission Approval of International Travel Requests for Known Travel in the First 
Quarter of 2024. 

 
Request document(s) included an agenda memorandum. 
 
8e. Commission Adoption of the 2024 Local and Regional Government Policy Priorities. 
 
Request document(s) included an agenda memorandum and presentation. 
 
8f. Authorization for the Executive Director to Execute up to Three Indefinite Delivery, 

Indefinite Quantity Consultant Agreements for Services Related to Construction 
Testing and Special Inspection Services for Projects at the Seattle-Tacoma 
International Airport and Seaport Locations, with a Cumulated Total Amount Not-to-
Exceed $6,000,000. 

 
Request document(s) included an agenda memorandum. 
 
8g. Authorization for the Executive Director to Execute a New Collective Bargaining 

Agreement Between the Port of Seattle and PROTEC17, Representing Airport Duty 
Managers at the Port of Seattle Covering the Period from May 21, 2022, through May 
20, 2025. 

 
Request document(s) included an agenda memorandum and agreement. 
 
8h. Authorization for the Executive Director to Approve Construction Costs in the Amount 

of $4,500,000 for the T91 Domestic Waterline Renewal Project and to Use Port Crews 
to Perform the Work Over an Eight-Year Period, for a Total Project Cost of $4,750,000. 
(CIP #C801243) 

 
Request document(s) included an agenda memorandum and presentation. 
 
8i1. Commission Authorization of the 2024/25 Tourism Marketing Grant Program and 

Authorization for the Executive Director to Approve Execution for All Related Contract 
Agreements for the 2024/25 Selected Tourism Marketing Support Program Recipients 
in an Amount Not-to-Exceed $600,000. 

 
Request document(s) included an agenda memorandum and presentation. 
 
8j. Authorization for the Executive Director to Take All Steps Necessary, Including the 

Execution of All Contracts, Including Public Works, Alternative Public Work 
Procedures in Accordance with RCW 39.10, Goods and Services Personal Services, 

 
1 Item 8i was removed from the Consent Agenda and addressed separately below. 

009



PORT COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES Page 5 of 10 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2024  
 

Minutes of October 27, 2020, submitted for review on November 5, 2020, and proposed for approval on November 10, 2020. 

Professional Services, Other Consulting Services, and Any Other Types of Contracts 
or Agreements to Complete the Automated Screening Lanes Checkpoint Conversion 
Project in the Amount of $12,000,000, for a Total Estimated Project Cost of $12,250,000. 
(CIP #C801420) 

 
Request document(s) included an agenda memorandum. 
 
The motion for approval of consent agenda items 8a, 8b, 8c, 8d, 8e, 8f, 8g, 8h, and 8j carried 
by the following vote: 
 
In favor: Calkins, Cho, Felleman, and Mohamed (4) 
Opposed: (0) 
 
ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA 
 
8i. Commission Authorization of the 2024/25 Tourism Marketing Grant Program and 

Authorization for the Executive Director to Approve Execution for All Related Contract 
Agreements for the 2024/25 Selected Tourism Marketing Support Program Recipients 
in an Amount Not-to-Exceed $600,000. 

 
Request document(s) included an agenda memorandum and presentation. 
 
Presenter(s):  

Nick Leonti, Director of Tourism Development  
 
Commissioner Felleman inquired regarding the panel review process for grant awards and spoke 
regarding the Port considering external panel participants.  He also spoke regarding diversity in 
contracting with respect to the grant award process and separately regarding environmental tourism 
and inquired how those resources are stewarded.   
 
The motion, made by Commissioner Felleman carried by the following vote:  
In favor: Calkins, Cho, Felleman, and Mohamed (4)  
Opposed: (0) 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS  
 
10a. Authorization for the Executive Director to Execute Contract Agreements and to 

Implement the 2024 Economic Development Partnership Program with King County 
Cities in an Amount Not-to-Exceed $900,000, Including Authorization for the Executive 
Director to Execute Contracts Using Unutilized Program Funding to Advance Regional 
Initiatives to Further Equitable and Small Business Recovery. 

 
Requested document(s) included an agenda memorandum and presentation. 
 
Presenter(s):  

Dave McFadden, Managing Director, Economic Development Division 
Annie Tran, Economic Development Manager, Economic Development Administration 

010



PORT COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES Page 6 of 10 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2024  
 

Minutes of October 27, 2020, submitted for review on November 5, 2020, and proposed for approval on November 10, 2020. 

 
Clerk Hart read Item 10a into the record. 
 
Executive Director Metruck introduced the item and presenters.  
 
The presentation addressed: 

• program background; 
• data related to the previous grant cycle; 
• cumulative small business assistance impacts; 
• small business assistance initiatives; 
• cumulative tourism impacts and tourism initiatives; 
• buy local/placemaking impacts; 
• return on investment; 
• program insights; 
• improving outcomes and focus; and 
• the 2024 request to authorize the program for one year and providing more assistance to 

cities without economic development staff to support projects. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding standardizing gathered quantitative metrics to evaluate program 
success. 
 
The motion, made by Commissioner Cho, carried by the following vote:  
In favor: Calkins, Cho, Felleman, and Mohamed (4)  
Opposed: (0) 
 
10b2. Order No. 2024-04:  An Order Setting a Timeline for the Completion of the Assessment 

of Prior Sound Insulated Properties; Creating a Sound Insulation Repair and 
Replacement Pilot Program; and Setting Equity Guidelines for this Program. 

 
Request document(s) included an order. 

 
10c. Authorization to Execute an Interlocal Agreement with the Puget Sound Partnership 

Enabling the Port to Receive State Funding to Support the Purchase of Equipment to 
Monitor Juvenile Salmonid Utilization of Duwamish River People’s Park and Shoreline 
Habitat in the Amount of $115,000. 

 
Requested document(s) included an agenda memorandum, agreement, and presentation. 
 
Presenter(s):  

Sarah Ogier, Director, Maritime Environment and Sustainability 
Jenn Stebbings, Environmental Programs Manager, Environmental Planning Permit and 

Compliance  
Kathleen Hurley, Senior Environmental Program Manager, Environmental Planning Permit and 

Compliance 
 

 
2 Agenda Item 10b was removed from the agenda and moved to the February 27, 2024, Commission 
meeting. 

011



PORT COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES Page 7 of 10 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2024  
 

Minutes of October 27, 2020, submitted for review on November 5, 2020, and proposed for approval on November 10, 2020. 

Clerk Hart read Item 10c into the record. 
 
Executive Director Metruck introduced the item and presenters.  
 
The presentation addressed: 

• importance of the Duwamish in the watershed; 
• the Duwamish River People’s Park and shoreline habitat; 
• the request to execute an interlocal agreement with Puget Sound Partnership for funding to 

purchase a PIT array to monitor juvenile salmon use at the park; and 
• scope and schedule of the project. 

 
Discussion ensued regarding PIT tagging for wild fish. 
 
The motion, made by Commissioner Felleman, carried by the following vote:  
In favor: Calkins, Cho, Felleman, and Mohamed (4)  
Opposed: (0) 

 
10d. (Number Not Used.) 

 
10e. Authorization for the Executive Director to Approve Additional Funding in the Amount 

of $22,000,000 for Construction of the Terminal 91 Berth 6 and 8 Redevelopment and to 
Award and Execute a Contract with the Lowest Responsible Bidder, for a Total Estimated 
Project Cost of $98,000,000. (CIP# C102475 and C801350). 

 
Requested document(s) included an agenda memorandum and presentation. 
 
Presenter(s):  

Stephanie Jones Stebbins, Managing Director, Maritime Division 
Kelli Goodwin, Senior Manager, Maritime Operations 
Mark Longridge, Capital Project Manager V, Waterfront Project Management 
 

Clerk Hart read Item 10e into the record. 
 
Executive Director Metruck introduced the item and presenters.  
 
The presentation addressed: 

• Terminal 91 berths 6 and 8 impacts to budget; 
• project location; 
• project contribution to the community; 
• construction bid summary; 
• project schedule; 
• remaining project risks; and 
• the authorization request and next steps. 

 
Discussion ensued regarding: 

• overage in the costs of the project; 
• predicting actual costs; 

012



PORT COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES Page 8 of 10 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2024 

Minutes of October 27, 2020, submitted for review on November 5, 2020, and proposed for approval on November 10, 2020. 

• considerable escalation in certain sectors of construction and market pricing;
• negligible difference between the lowest successful bidder and the next submitter’s bid;
• reviewing the design/build contracting method utilized, which leans itself to escalation;
• de-risking projects as much as possible;
• investing in the heavy demand piers and the very positive spot on the waterfront;
• third-party review of cost estimates;
• improvements to the capital delivery as a process improvement;
• bid award and grant funding; and
• looking for grant funding for any ancillary components of the project that may not interfere

with the bid delivery.

The motion, made by Commissioner Cho, carried by the following vote: 
In favor: Calkins, Cho, Felleman, and Mohamed (4)  
Opposed: (0) 

11. PRESENTATIONS AND STAFF REPORTS

11a. 2024 International Policy Priorities Briefing. 

Presentation document(s) included agenda memorandum and presentation. 

Presenter(s): 
Melissa Parks, Government Relations Policy Analyst, External Relations  
Stephanie Meyn, Senior Environmental Program Manager, Aviation Environmental Programs 
Group 

Clerk Hart read Item 11a into the record. 

Executive Director Metruck introduced the item and presenters. 

The presentation addressed: 
• creation of an international agenda;
• international engagement;
• 2024 international priorities identified; and
• adoption of the agenda at the next Commission meeting.

(Commissioner Calkins exited the meeting at 2:32 p.m.) 

Discussion ensued regarding: 
• Commissioner input into the agenda;
• attending international events with clear objectives; and
• the importance of establishing relationships in international conversations.

Members of the Commission thanked staff for their report. 

11b. 2023 Internal Audit Annual Report. 

013



PORT COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES Page 9 of 10 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2024 

Minutes of October 27, 2020, submitted for review on November 5, 2020, and proposed for approval on November 10, 2020. 

Presentation document(s) included agenda memorandum and presentation. 

Presenter(s): 
Glenn Fernandes, Director, Internal Audit 

Clerk Hart read Item 11b into the record. 

Executive Director Metruck introduced the item and presenters. 

Internal Audit Director, Glenn Fernandes, provided the 2023 annual audit report to the Members of 
the Commission.  The report included an overview of the 2023 audit plan; audits completed in 2023; 
and 2024 audit strategy.  

Discussion ensued regarding improvement on contract language. 

Members of the Commission thanked staff for their report and public Audit Committee member, 
Sarah Holmstrom, for their work in 2023.   

11c. 2023 Committee Review and 2024 Committee Work Plans Briefing. 

Presentation document(s) included agenda memorandum and presentation. 

Presenter(s): 
 Vy Nguyen, Commission Strategic Advisor, Commission Office 
LeeAnne Schirato, Deputy Chief of Staff, Commission Office 

Clerk Hart read Item 11c into the record. 

Executive Director Metruck introduced the item and presenters. 

The presentation addressed accomplishments of 2023 committee workplans and workplans set for 
2024.  

Discussion ensued regarding utilizing the 2:2:1 briefing process for Commissioners for items that are 
only subjects of interest, as opposed to more policy or substantive committee discussion items; and 
separately, regarding distinguishing small business work from the Equity and Workforce 
Development Committee. 

Members of the Commission thanked staff for their report. 

12. QUESTIONS on REFERRAL to COMMITTEE and CLOSING COMMENTS

Commissioner Mohamed spoke regarding her earlier meeting with the FAA Administrator and 
Executive Director Metruck at which they showcased SEA projects and, elevated community 
concerns from the airport StART Committee.  

014



PORT COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES Page 10 of 10 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2024  
 

Minutes of October 27, 2020, submitted for review on November 5, 2020, and proposed for approval on November 10, 2020. 

Discussion ensued regarding the FAA reauthorization bill and status of the repair and replace sound 
program included therein. 
 
Commissioner Cho wished everyone a happy Lunar New Year. 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There was no further business and the meeting adjourned at 3:34 p.m. 
  
 
Prepared:     Attest: 
 
 
            
Michelle M. Hart, Commission Clerk  Ryan Calkins, Commission Secretary 
 
Minutes approved: February 27, 2024 
 

 

015



 

Template revised January 10, 2019. 

  

COMMISSION 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM  Item No. 8b 

ACTION ITEM  Date of Meeting February 27, 2024 
 

DATE : February 2, 2024 

TO: Stephen P. Metruck, Executive Director 

FROM: Kyra Lise, Director, Real Estate Development 
Rick Duncan, Director, AV Business & Properties 

 
SUBJECT:   SeaTac Office Center (STOC) Changes in Port Lease and CAM Expenses  
 
Amount of this request: $700,000 
  
Total Estimated Lease Costs:   $9,818,285 
Previously authorized Lease Costs:  $9,118,285 
Incremental Lease Costs Requested:  $   700,000 

 

ACTION REQUESTED  

Request Commission authorization for $700,000 in additional funds to support costs associated 
with the current approved Port of Seattle’s lease and occupancy of the SeaTac Office Center 
(AKA International Place). These funds have already been approved within the 2024 Budget and 
now require additional Commission authorization to increase the authorized funding for 
contract payments through the remainder of the current lease term. 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

Since 2015, the Port of Seattle has leased approximated 47,000 sf of office space (non-
contiguous) at SeaTac Office Center (AKA International Place) an office property opposite the 
SEA Terminal property currently owned by STOC OWNER, LLC. The office and related parking 
supply leased by the Port has supported various Aviation related capital projects, mainly for 
Airport Building Department, Aviation Project Management, Port Construction Services, Central 
Procurement Office, Engineering teams and Port contractors. This leased location allows the 
Port to provide a flexible, near-terminal accommodation for employees and contractors 
supporting AV project delivery, in particular IAF and related capital upgrade projects for the 
Terminal. The original lease term was for 5 years and included provisions for both rent on a per 
square foot basis as well as Common Area Maintenance (CAM) costs of which the Port was 
responsible for its pro-rata share.   
 

016



COMMISSION AGENDA – Action Item No. 8b  Page 2 of 5 
Meeting Date: February 27, 2024 
 

Template revised June 27, 2019 (Diversity in Contracting). 

The Port has authorized rent and CAM expenditures at STOC over the years in various annual 
budgets and has also renewed and modified the original the lease terms under various 
amendments; currently under a 7th amendment to the original 2015 lease.  
 
The funding requests for this lease previously authorized by Commission were based on historic 
estimations of annual increases in CAM expenses, modelled parking utilization based on historic 
parking usage, and leased space premises durations based on capital project schedules. Actual 
inflation impact on CAM expenses in recent years have exceeded historic averages and as a 
result actual annual pro-rata CAM expenses over recent years have exceeded the estimates in 
the previous Commission funding authorizations. In addition, actual parking utilization by Port 
users of this leased office space have exceeded initial estimates, and leased premises for some 
capital projects have been extended due to changes in project schedules – notably the IAF 
timeline. All these factors have contributed to the need to request an increase in total contract 
funding for this lease.  
 
This request for $700,000 is a one-time request to increase the total authorization for lease 
contract payments through the remaining term of the current lease. Without the additional 
$700,000 funding increase, contractual lease payments will deplete the remaining authorized 
funding in March 2024 – well before the end of our existing lease terms which continue through 
August 31st of 2024.   
 
JUSTIFICATION  

This authorization request allows the Port to meet its existing obligations under the STOC office 
lease for CAM expenses, leased premises, and incremental parking utilization. Per the terms of 
the lease, CAM expenses are not capped but represented real costs of Port occupancy. Over the 
years of this lease, the Port pursued some time extensions in leased space within the building, 
as well as a modest increase in additional parking usage. This incremental funding authorization 
request will enable the Port to pay current lease obligations through the remaining term of the 
existing lease. 
 
Diversity in Contracting 

No new contracting opportunity applies to this request.  
 
DETAILS 

ALTERNATIVES AND IMPLICATIONS CONSIDERED 

As this authorization deals with complying to the terms and conditions of an already executed 
contract, the STOC lease, there are no alternatives that will allow us to exit the lease obligations 
without legal and financial consequences to the Port.  Section 3 of the lease broadly requires us 
to pay for our pro-rata share of the operating costs of the building; common area utilities and 
maintenance costs, insurance, janitorial expenses and so forth.  Section 18 of the lease puts us 
in default of the lease contract if we do not pay according to its terms.  We do not offer any 

017



COMMISSION AGENDA – Action Item No. 8b  Page 3 of 5 
Meeting Date: February 27, 2024 
 

Template revised June 27, 2019 (Diversity in Contracting). 

alternative that would put us in default of the lease.  If we were to continue non-payment, the 
STOC ownership not only could successfully pursue full payment of the current terms in a court 
of law, but the Port may also engender additional monetary damages to compensate the 
landlord. 
 
Alternative 1 – Negotiate with the STOC building ownership for an extension of time to pay the 
lease. 

Cost Implications: $700,000  

Pros:  
(1) Would provide the Port more time to socialize the obligation of lease payments 

among the departments who are obliged to pay for this lease expense. 
 

Cons:  
(1) The Port intends to continue its occupancy of the STOC property past the current term 

provision under a new lease.  Were we to delay payment, this might sour ongoing 
discussions of the Port’s new lease. 

(2) Property owners may still require immediate payment of the existing terms of the 
lease, even if building management were to agree to wait for payments, and could 
trigger additional costs due to default. 

(3) Delayed payment may further complicate accounting for payment internal to the Port 
and trigger a bad audit finding. 

 
This is not the recommended alternative. 
 
Alternative 2 – Authorize funds to meet the obligations due per the lease terms. 

Cost Implications: $700,000 

Pros:  
(1) Allows us to meet our financial and contractual obligations per our existing lease. 
(2) Allows us to continue our relationship with STOC management in good order. 

Cons:  
(1) There are no additional potential risks associated with this recommended alternative. 

 
This is the recommended alternative. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

Authorization History 
 
The total of all previous authorizations related to this existing STOC lease agreement is 
$9,118,285.  
 

018



COMMISSION AGENDA – Action Item No. 8b  Page 4 of 5 
Meeting Date: February 27, 2024 
 

Template revised June 27, 2019 (Diversity in Contracting). 

This includes the initial authorization in July 2015 of $1,995,285 for a four-year lease agreement 
for International Arrivals Facility (IAF) Program Management office space, an additional 
authorization in November 2017 of $6,829,000 to add additional space for the Capital 
Development Department (CDD) and Central Procurement Office (CPO) Major Works 
Department through August 2024, and an additional authorization of $294,000 from the 
Executive Director in August 2023 to add supplemental parking stalls for the Employee Parking 
cost recovery program over one year. 
 

PRIOR AUTHORIZATION HISTORY  
Initial Authorization – April 2015 $1,995,285 
Additional Authorization – November 2017 $6,829,000 
Additional Authorization – August 2023 $294,000 
Cumulative Authorizations $9,118,285 
 
Authorization Request 
 
Based on an analysis of remaining expense obligations anticipated through the August 31, 2024 
end of this lease agreement, we are expected to require additional funding beyond the 
$9,118,285 already authorized - by a minimum of $673,717. To ensure that we will not require 
further authorization before the end of this lease period, we are requesting total additional 
one-time Commission authorization of $700,000 to sufficiently cover this shortfall. 
 

AUTHORIZATION REQUEST  
Previous Authorizations  $9,118,285 
Current Request for Authorization $700,000 
Total Authorizations, Including this Request $9,818,285 
Remaining Amount to be Authorized   $0 
 
The table below shows the key elements that contributed to this $673,717 shortfall – the gap 
between the $9,118,285 previously authorized and a $9,792,002 minimum anticipated need.  
 

SUMMARY OF VARIANCES (Cumulative through 2024)  
Cumulative Authorizations $9,118,285 
Plus: Higher Operating & Common Area Maintenance Charges $388,834 
Plus: Longer Duration of Rented Space for IAF $173,357 
Plus: Supplemental Parking Spaces Used by Port Employees $92,484 
Plus: Other Miscellaneous Costs $19,043 
Minimum Anticipated Need through August 31, 2024 $9,792,002 
Plus: Additional Contingency Included in this $700,000 Request $26,283 
Total Authorizations, Including this Request $9,818,285 
 

019



COMMISSION AGENDA – Action Item No. 8b  Page 5 of 5 
Meeting Date: February 27, 2024 
 

Template revised June 27, 2019 (Diversity in Contracting). 

The single largest contribution to this higher anticipated funding need is from Operating and 
Common Area Maintenance charges, which have increased faster than originally contemplated 
due to a much higher inflationary environment than initially estimated. The estimates from 
2017 assumed a 2.0% annual growth rate for these charges, while several years included actual 
increases between 5% and 10% that have compounded over time. 
 
The next largest contributor was a longer duration of space usage for the IAF Program 
Management, as the timeline for substantial completion of the project extended further than 
initially planned. 
 
During the COVID-19 pandemic, there was also a greater demand for parking stalls that 
exceeded the quantity assigned in our lease agreement, resulting in supplemental parking 
charges incurred. 
 
Annual Budget Status and Source of Funds 

Approving this request will have no incremental impact to the 2024 Budget. All space rent, 
operating expense, common area maintenance expense, and parking expense have already 
been anticipated and captured in the 2024 Budget that was adopted in November 2023. This 
funding request is needed to allow contractual lease payments under the remaining lease term, 
with no additional expense in this year’s operating budget.  
 
ATTACHMENTS TO THIS REQUEST  

(1) Lease (Fully Executed, dated 7-1-2015; this is the main body of the current lease agreement 
which currently has 7 amendments in it’s current form, however all lease issues referenced 
in this authorization are contained herein.) 

 
PREVIOUS COMMISSION ACTIONS OR BRIEFINGS 

August 1, 2023 – The Executive Director approved, under delegated authority, a $294,000 
amendment to the existing STOC lease agreement for the lease of additional parking 
stalls for employee parking through August 31, 2024  

 
November 14, 2017 – The Commission authorized the Executive Director to approve a lease 

amendment for office space for two additional departments to move into the SeaTac 
Office Center (STOC) for $6,829,000 

 
October 24, 2017 – The Commission was briefed on a proposal to execute a lease 

amendment for office space for two additional departments to move into the SeaTac 
Office Center (STOC) for $6,829,000 

 
April 28, 2015 – The Commission was briefed on, and authorized, a request to execute a 

four-year lease agreement to provide office space for the IAF Program Management 
Group in the SeaTac Office Center (STOC) for $1,995,285 

020



021



022



023



024



025



026



027



028



029



030



031



032



033



034



035



036



037



038



039



040



041



042



043



044



045



046



047



048



049



050



051



052



053



054



055



056



057



058



059



060



061



062



063



064



065



066



067



068



069



070



071



072



073



074



075



076



077



078



079



080



081



082



083



084



085



086



087



088



089



090



091



092



093



094



095

RETURN TO AGENDA



Template revised January 10, 2019. 

COMMISSION 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM  Item No. 8c 

ACTION ITEM Date of Meeting February 27, 2024 

DATE: February 16, 2024  

TO: Stephen P. Metruck, Executive Director 

FROM: Melissa Parks, Government Relations Policy Analyst 

SUBJECT: 2024 International Agenda Adoption  

ACTION REQUESTED 

Commission approval of the Port’s 2024 international policy agenda, and direction for the 
Executive Director to authorize staff to engage in advocacy efforts to support implementation of 
these policy priorities. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Port of Seattle Commissioners, executive team members, and internal subject-matter experts are 
engaging internationally to build relationships, share the opportunities and challenges of 
operating maritime and aviation gateways, and advocate in support of Port goals that are beyond 
our direct authority. This draft memo establishes the Port’s international policy priorities, 
highlighting work underway and emerging opportunities, to enhance transparency and guide our 
engagement for 2024.  

Driven by the Century Agenda, the Port is working to achieve ambitious goals that maintain Puget 
Sound as a premier international gateway for commerce and tourism that benefits the region 
while ensuring equity, sustainability, and quality of life for our region’s residents. While the Port 
can upgrade and modify our facilities, we have limited control over the commercial aircraft and 
maritime vessels that utilize our gateway. We need international standards to fully achieve these 
goals and others. 

The global climate crisis and energy transition are both significant, complex challenges as well as 
opportunities. Knowing what is ahead for the future of our industries will create opportunities 
for innovative business development and sustainability initiatives. As a leader in sustainability 
the Port can utilize our local action and investments to demonstrate global leadership and 
influence international outcomes.  

Success of these international priorities will be through highlighting the Port’s continued local 
investments as well as engagement with international ports, the United States Government, 
industry associations, private industry, and non-governmental organizations.  

096



COMMISSION AGENDA – Action Item No. 8c  Page 2 of 4 
Meeting Date: February 27, 2024 
 

Template revised June 27, 2019 (Diversity in Contracting). 

 
2024 INTERNATIONAL POLICY PRIORITIES  

 
Promote Transparency, Collaboration, and Consistency 

Encourage transparency and broad engagement in developing globally consistent standards 
and policies for aviation and maritime industries to promote public awareness, industry 
alignment, and certainty for planning and effective implementation. Coordinate with The 
Northwest Seaport Alliance on international maritime engagement.  

Promote collaboration, share best practices and challenges, and foster relationships to develop 
comprehensive solutions to complex global issues and help achieve our goals by engaging in 
key international forums such as the International Civilian Aviation Organization (ICAO), 
International Maritime Organization (IMO), United Nations Climate Conference of Parties; with 
international partners including our sister ports, particularly, Busan, Kobe, Rotterdam, and 
Singapore; and industry associations and non-government organizations including  Airports 
Council International, International Association of Ports and Harbours (IAPH), and Getting to Zero 
Coalition. 

 

Promote Equity, Environmental Justice, and Sustainable Development  

Promote the adoption of principles and values that commit organizations to equity, 
environmental justice, and sustainable development, as well as committing to engage 
communities most impacted by industries associated with port operations.  

Advocate for policies, programs, projects, and investments that advance equity and support 
environmental and economic justice and implements the United Nations’ Sustainable 
Development Goals. Solutions need to be co-developed with and center the experiences and 
voices of the communities most impacted.  
 

Addressing Climate Change and Reducing Air Emissions  

Support robust and immediate climate action, policies, and initiatives, like the Paris Agreement 
and Clydebank Declaration, that demonstrate ambitious, feasible, and equitable approaches to 
mitigate climate changing factors and prepare for climate impacts.  
 
Encourage international organizations to incorporate environmental justice principles into its 
climate policy that are people-centered, developed with impacted communities, and seeks 
mitigation as well as better quality of life for communities who are experiencing the burden of 
climate change. 
 
Support decision making based on science, quantitative and qualitative data, and that 
considers lived experiences; progress reporting; and information sharing on global climate 
impacts and mitigation and adaptation strategies relevant to the Port, King County, or the Pacific 
Northwest.  

097



COMMISSION AGENDA – Action Item No. 8c Page 3 of 4 
Meeting Date: February 27, 2024 

Template revised June 27, 2019 (Diversity in Contracting). 

Monitor developments of standards for safe handling and storage of emerging alternative 
aviation and maritime fuels, such as hydrogen and methanol, at the ICAO and IMO. Provide input 
on issues that could impact worker and community safety and airport and seaport operations.  

Support ICAO implementation of policy instruments, including the Carbon Offsetting and 
Reduction Scheme (CORSIA), to achieve net zero aviation emissions by 2050 and encourage 
investments that accelerate the uptake and supply of Sustainable Aviation Fuel. 

(1) Monitor developments related to emissions and other aviation environmental
impacts within the ICAO Committee on Aviation Environmental Protection (CAEP) that
assists the ICAO Council in formulating new policies and adopting new Standards and
Recommended Practices (SARPs) related to emissions, and more generally to aviation
environmental impact.

Support the IMO’s development of policies to reduce climate and air pollution emissions from 
commercial shipping by 2050 including:  

(1) Global maritime fuel standard that reduces the intensity of greenhouse gas emissions
in fuel over time and meets sustainability criteria.

(2) Economic measures that create a level playing field globally and incentivizes the
supply and use of low and zero emission maritime fuels.

(3) Just Transition policy that works to equitably distribute gains, and reduces the risk to,
developing countries in the transition to low and zero emission fuels.

Encourage knowledge sharing between Green Shipping Corridors and their international 
partners to accelerate supply and uptake of low and zero greenhouse gas emission fuels and 
maximize participation by ports and ships. Engage the U.S federal government and other 
international governing bodies in these conversations.  

Contribute to efforts coordinated by IAPH to standardize shore power connections and power 
distribution differences to increase interoperability between ports and ships and increase 
connection rates.  

Monitor development of international standards for offshore wind and other alternative 
energy developments; and encourage collaboration in standards between governments and 
leading international developers to reduce barriers to deployment. Support the development of 
offshore wind and alternative energy supply chains that prioritize low greenhouse gas emissions, 
economic development, and social equity.  

098



COMMISSION AGENDA – Action Item No. 8c  Page 4 of 4 
Meeting Date: February 27, 2024 
 

Template revised June 27, 2019 (Diversity in Contracting). 

Reducing Aviation and Maritime Noise  
 
Monitor and support developments to reduce noise from commercial aircraft by the ICAO 
Committee on Aviation Environmental Protection (CAEP), including through aircraft technology 
and airport operational best practices.  
 
Support the IMO’s voluntary guidelines to reduce underwater radiated noise from ships and 
share experiences and outcomes from the Port of Seattle’s efforts to help inform uptake and use 
of the guidelines.  
 
Improving Water Quality/Marine Health  

Monitor the IMO’s development of standards for the discharge of wash water from exhaust 
gas cleaning systems and the use of risk and impact assessments to inform decisions about 
restrictions or limits to wash water discharge.  
 
Encourage awareness of, and actions to reduce, ocean acidification impacts to global marine 
ecosystems, communities, and associated industries. Share Port research on local, nature-based 
carbon remediation including kelp and eelgrass enhancement, with international partners 
through the International Alliance to Combat Ocean Acidification.  
 
Combat and Reduce Human Trafficking 

Monitor and encourage efforts at ICAO, the IMO, and other international organizations we 
engage with to increase awareness of and combat human trafficking in aviation and maritime 
industries and share the Port’s experience with implementing the national awareness campaign. 
Highlight the Port’s public-private partnership with local organizations to combat human 
trafficking. 
 
Support Sustainable Tourism 

Support the Global Sustainable Tourism Council’s best practices that balance the 
environmental, social, cultural, and economic aspects of tourism and share the Port’s, and our 
Washington tourism partners’, sustainable and inclusive tourism best practices. 
 
ATTACHMENTS TO THIS BRIEFING  

(1) Presentation slides  
 
PREVIOUS COMMISSION ACTIONS OR BRIEFINGS  

February 13, 2024 – Commission briefing on the draft 2024 International Policy Agenda 

099



2024 INTERNATIONAL POLICY PRIORITIES ADOPTION
Melissa Parks, Government Relations Policy Analyst

1

Item No. 8c supp
Meeting Date: February 27, 2024

100



Overview 

• Why an International Agenda 

• International Engagement

• International Priorities for 2024 

• Next Steps 

2
101



Global

Regional

National

Puget Sound

Port of Seattle 
& Surrounding 
Communities

Low Global Impact and High Port Influence

High Global Impact & Low Port Influence International advocacy and 
engagement

Collaborative environmental 
strategies

Federal agency engagement

Collaboration between ports, 
local and tribal governments

Port of Seattle’s mission
Community benefits, programs, 
and grants

Partnership Critical to Port Strategies

Why an International Agenda

102



International Engagement 

4

Meetings/Forums
• UN Climate Conference COP 27
• International Maritime Organization
• Port Authorities Roundtable 
• Asia-Pacific Economic Cooperation 

Associations/NGOs 
• Air Transport Action Group (ATAG)
• Airports Council International (ACI)
• Int’l Association of Ports & Harbors (IAPH)
• Getting to Zero Coalition

Written Comments
Credit: Space Needle

Credit: Sandy Kilroy

Credit: Oceantic Network Credit: Space Needle

Credit: Space Needle

Credit: Fred Felleman

103



2024 International Priorities

5

Reduce Aviation and Maritime Noise

Alternative Energy Standards 

Improve Water Quality/Marine Health

Combat and Reduce Human Trafficking 

Support Sustainable Tourism  

Addressing Climate Change & Air Pollution

104



2024 International Priorities 

6

CLIMATE 
ACTION

• Robust and immediate climate action
• Decisions supported by data, people-centered
• Transparency: progress reporting, information sharing

• Int’l Maritime Org (IMO): Zero by 2050 
• Fuel Standard, Economic Measure, Equitable & Just
• Green Corridor knowledge sharing
• Shore power connections

• Int’l Civil Aviation Org (ICAO): Net Zero by 2050
• Sustainable Aviation Fuels
• Emerging environmental standards and recommended 

practices

105



7

Next Steps

• Commission Adopts International Priorities
• Staff engage on priorities

Upcoming Engagement Opportunities
• WindEurope in Bilbao, Spain
• International Leadership Mission to Korea
• Singapore Maritime Week
• IMO Marine Environment Protection Committee 81

106

RETURN TO AGENDA



Order 2024-04 – Sound Insulation Order Page 1 of 2 

1 
2 
3 
4 

ORDER NO. 2024-04 5 
AN ORDER OF THE PORT OF SEATTLE COMMISSION 6 

7 
…setting a timeline for the completion of the assessment of 8 
prior sound insulated properties; creating a Sound Insulation 9 
Repair and Replacement Pilot Program; and setting equity 10 
guidelines for this program.  11 

12 
PROPOSED 13 

FEBRUARY 27, 2024 14 
15 
16 

TEXT OF THE ORDER 17 
18 

The Port Commission hereby orders an assessment regarding the effectiveness of previously 19 
installed Port of Seattle funded noise insulation packages be conducted and concluded by the end 20 
of the year 2024. The assessment will involve extensive outreach, collection of information from 21 
property owners and analysis of that information. Results of that assessment shall be delivered to 22 
the Commission by January 21, 2025. 23 

24 
The Commission also directs the establishment of a "Sound Insulation Repair and Replacement 25 
Pilot Program" at the Port of Seattle to identify the issues involved in the repair and re-insulation 26 
for prioritized homes. Effective immediately, the Commission authorizes an initial commitment 27 
of up to $5 million dollars to be used exclusively for the costs of administering the program to 28 
carry out activities related to the construction planning and construction repair and replacement of 29 
sound insulation in homes identified and prioritized through the Port’s process. The Port will seek 30 
state matching funds and federal grant funding (if available) as well. The Commission hereby sets 31 
the goal of completing the assessment phase and beginning the construction planning and/or 32 
construction phase of this pilot program in the year 2025. 33 

34 
The Commission also authorizes the Executive Director to execute any and all contracts and 35 
documents necessary for the assessment directed by this order and the Sound Insulation Repair 36 
and Pilot Program including but not limited to the use of existing job order contracts, Port crews, 37 
purchasing contracts, service agreements, construction contracts, agreements with private property 38 
owners, and the acquisition of any property rights associated with Sound Insulation Repair and 39 
Pilot Program. The total budget authorized by this Order is $6.5 million for the assessment directed 40 
by this order and the Sound Insulation Repair and Replacement Pilot Program.  41 

42 
43 
44 
45 

Agenda Item: 10a_Order 
Meeting Date: February 27, 2024 

107



Order 2024-04 – Sound Insulation Order Page 2 of 2 

The Port shall use its equity index or other data-driven tool developed by the Port’s Office of 46 
Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion, as well as other program criteria to identify and prioritize 47 
properties that will be part of this limited pilot program. The equity index shall help determine 48 
who should receive priority consideration for repair and/or replacement of their noise insulation 49 
during the pilot.   50 

51 
Upon the completion of the pilot program, a comprehensive report shall be presented to 52 
Commissioners, Washington State and Federal Legislators for evaluation and further action. 53 

54 
STATEMENT IN SUPPORT OF THE ORDER 55 

56 
In the 1980s the Port of Seattle pioneered a type of residential aircraft noise insulation program 57 
that was later implemented at many other U.S. airports. The Port has recently expedited efforts to 58 
insulate various types of residences and places of worship that are eligible under Federal Aviation 59 
Administration guidelines but have not yet received noise insulation. This new Sound Insulation 60 
Repair and Replacement Pilot Program is not part of the existing program that is providing 61 
insulation to eligible buildings that have not yet received any insulation. This new Sound Insulation 62 
Repair and Replacement Pilot Program is not part of the Part 150 program.  63 

64 
Commissioners routinely hear from constituents that due to several factors, including the age and 65 
durability of sound insulation installed several decades ago, some of the Port funded sound 66 
insulation packages may no longer be effective.  In response to these community concerns and 67 
federal noise mandates, this pilot includes an assessment regarding insulation packages paid for 68 
by the Port. The Port has not yet identified the number of residents who may have packages not 69 
meeting noise standards and in need of repair, which this Order also intends to rectify.  70 

71 
Both past and present members of the Port’s federal legislative delegation have made efforts to 72 
secure federal funds for noise insulation in the communities surrounding SEA. The Port has also 73 
supported/advocated for legislative changes to address the issue of re-insulation. Since 1985, the 74 
Port’s sound insulation program has reached out to every single homeowner within the relevant 65 75 
DNL noise contour and provided sound insulation to over 9000 homes. There are currently 76 
approximately 100 homes that have not received packages for a variety of reasons. Additionally, 77 
the program is currently providing insulation to apartment buildings, condominiums and places of 78 
worship. The Port is committed to completing the insulation of the currently eligible buildings 79 
while concurrently making progress to identify, evaluate, and repair packages that may be in need 80 
of this work. This Order intends to pilot a solution so that the Port of Seattle can continue to lead 81 
the nation in resolving this issue.  82 

83 
This Order seeks to start a process that will, in a deliberate, equitable, and prioritized fashion, 84 
provide Port funding to assist in the repair and replacement of eligible noise insulation.   85 

86 

108

RETURN TO AGENDA



Template revised September 22, 2016. 

COMMISSION 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM  Item No. 10b 

ACTION ITEM Date of Meeting February 27, 2024 

DATE: February 21, 2024 

TO: Executive Director Stephen P. Metruck  

FROM: Pat Lawler, Sr. Manager, Airport Building Department 

SUBJECT: Introduction of Resolution No. XXXX to adopt the 2021 Building Codes, 
Amendments and Permit Fee Schedules. 

Amount of this request: $0.00 

Total estimated project cost:  $0.00 

ACTION REQUESTED 

Request introduction of Resolution No. 3819: a Resolution of the Port Commission of the Port of 
Seattle to adopt the 2021 editions of the International, Building, Mechanical, Fire, Energy 
Conservation and Fuel Gas Codes, the 2021 Edition of the Uniform Plumbing Code, and the 
editorial changes made to the State Building Code by the Washington State Legislature; and 
repealing Resolution No. 3783, as amended.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The building industry, contractors, designers, developers, and project managers depend on 
statewide uniformity in the codes that impact their businesses. Current Projects at the Seattle 
Tacoma International Airport, are built to the 2018 Washington State code. The adoption of 
this resolution will update the code to the 2021 code implement by March 15, 2024. 

JUSTIFICATION 

The State Building Code Council was created to advise the legislature on building code issues and 
develop building codes used in the State of Washington. To develop the Washington State 
Building Code (otherwise known as Chapter 19.27 RCW), the Council holds public hearings, 
considers proposed state amendments, and adopts the international model codes and 
amendments. This process normally occurs on a three-year cycle. The three-year cycle assures 
up-to-date performance for fire, health, and life safety codes.  

Diversity in Contracting 
N/A-No procurement proposed. 

109



COMMISSION AGENDA – Action Item No. 10b Page 2 of 2 
Meeting Date: February 27, 2024 
 

Template revised September 22, 2016; format updates October 19, 2016. 

DETAILS 

Adoption of the following 2021 editions of the model codes enumerated in RCW 19.27 follows: 
International Building Code (IBC) with state amendments  
ICC/ANSI A117.1-17 Accessible and Usable Buildings and Facilities with state amendments 
International Mechanical Code with state amendments 
International Fuel Gas Code with state amendments (noted in the IMC adoption) 
2020 Liquefied Petroleum Gas Code (NFPA 58) 
2021 National Fuel Gas Code (NFPA 54) (for LP Gas installations only) 
International Fire Code with state amendments 
Uniform Plumbing Code with state amendments  
International Energy Conservation Code with state amendments (WSEC) 
 
Scope of Work 
N/A-No procurement proposed. 
 
Schedule 
N/A-No procurement proposed. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

None. 
 
ATTACHMENTS TO THIS REQUEST  

(1) Draft Resolution 
(2) Presentation 

 
PREVIOUS COMMISSION ACTIONS OR BRIEFINGS  

January 26, 2021 - The Commission approved resolution 3783 
February 27, 2018 – The Commission approved Resolution No. 3745 
June 8, 2004 – The Commission approved Resolution No. 3527 
June 6, 2001 – The Commission approved Resolution No. 3454 
November 14, 2000 – The Commission approved Resolution No. 3445 
August 26, 1997 – The Commission approved Resolution No. 3251 
August 8, 1992 – The Commission approved Resolution No. 3119 

 

110



Resolution No. 3819, 2021 Codes Update  Page 1 of 3 

 1 
 2 
 3 

PORT OF SEATTLE 4 
RESOLUTION NO. 3819 5 

 6 
A RESOLUTION of the Port of Seattle Commission to adopt the 2021 versions of 7 

the Washington State building codes as required by  8 
RCW 19.27.031 and to repeal Resolution 3783. 9 

 10 
 11 

WHEREAS, the voters of King County authorized and approved the formation of a port 12 
district coterminous with King County to be known as the Port of Seattle in a special election on 13 
September 5, 1911; and 14 

 15 
WHEREAS, the Port of Seattle Commission is the legally constituted governing body of 16 

the Port of Seattle; and 17 
 18 
WHEREAS, the Port Commission wishes the Airport Building Code to comply with the 19 

current provisions of Washington State law by adopting the 2021 International Codes as set forth 20 
in RCW 19.27.031 by the Washington State Legislature to comprise the Airport Building Code. 21 

 22 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Port of Seattle Commission as 23 

follows: 24 
 25 
 SECTION 1.  Resolution No. 3783 is repealed. The 2021 International Building Codes 26 
and the 2021 Uniform Plumbing Code, as adopted and defined by Chapter 19.27.31 RCW and 27 
included in Title 13 of the City of SeaTac Code are hereby adopted.  28 
 29 
 SECTION 2. The effective date of this resolution is March 15, 2024. 30 
 31 
 SECTION 3. The Rules of Airport Construction are to be updated to reference the newly 32 
adopted codes. 33 
 34 
  35 

Item Number:  10b_reso  
Meeting Date: February 27, 2024 

111



Resolution No. 3819, 2021 Codes Update  Page 2 of 3 

ADOPTED by the Port of Seattle Commission at a duly noticed public meeting thereof, 36 
held this __________ day of  ______________________________ ,  and duly authenticated in 37 
open session by the signatures of the commissioners voting in favor thereof and the seal of the 38 
commission. 39 
 40 

 41 
       42 
 43 
       44 
 45 
       46 
 47 
       48 
 49 
       50 

Port of Seattle Commission    51 

112



Resolution NNNN, Short Label Here  Page 3 of 3 

EXHIBIT A to Resolution 3819 52 
 53 

Building Code Update 54 
As proposed February 27, 2024 55 

 56 
 57 
SECTION 1.  Washington State Codes to be updated: 58 
 59 

A. 2021 Codes: 60 
 61 

(1) International Building Code (IBC), including the Existing Building Code (IEBC) 62 
(2) International Mechanical Code (IMC) 63 
(3) International Fire Code (IFC) 64 
(4) International Energy Conservation Code (IECC) 65 
(5) International Wildland-Urban Interface Code (WUII) 66 
(6) Uniform Plumbing Code (UPC-published by IAPMO) 67 

 68 
 69 

B. 2017 Accessibility Standard ICC-A117.17 70 
 71 
 72 
 73 

 74 

 75 

113



Adoption of the 2021 International Building 
Codes, with Washington State Amendments 

Pat Lawler, Sr. Manager, Airport Building Department

Item No. _____10b_supp_____
Meeting Date: February 27, 2024

114



Overview

• Washington State Building Codes are the International family of codes 
and standards with state amendments to be adopted by Commission  
with an implementation date of March 15, 2024.

• Best practices, modern technology, and lessons learned are 
incorporated into each new cycle of building codes.

• Next steps
• Incorporate Commission feedback. Seek Commission adoption at the 3/12/24 

meeting.

2
115



2021 Washington State Building Codes 
State Codes helps to ensure buildings in the State are safe for occupants. 

• The Washington State Building Code (WSBC) includes the following 
codes with state amendments added for local conditions:
• International Building Code (IBC) 
• International Energy Conservation Code (IECC) (WSEC)
• International Mechanical Code (IMC)
• International Fuel Gas Codes (IFGC)
• International Fire Code (IFC) 
• 2020 National Electrical Code (NFPA 70).
• Uniform Plumbing Code (UPC).
• ICC-A117.1-2017 Accessibility Standard

3
116



State Building Code Development
Code Council advises State Legislature on code issues.

• Washington State Building Code is usually updated on a three-year 
cycle, but the pandemic and state lawsuits delayed the 2021 code 
adoption.

• State Building Code Council (SBCC) Rule-making provides a process for 
amendments to national and state codes

• The state code is developed through open meetings and public 
hearings, including Technical Advisory Group (TAG) meetings for review 
of each code.

4
117



State Building Code Council

• The State Building Code Council is an agency created by the legislature 
to provide independent analysis and objective advice to the legislature 
and the Governor's Office on state building code issues. 

• The Council establishes the minimum building, mechanical, fire, 
plumbing and energy code requirements necessary to promote the 
health, safety and welfare of the people of the State of Washington, by 
reviewing, developing and adopting the state building code.

5
118



Inter-Local Agreement

• The 2021 code adoption is required by the state and the Inter-Local 
Agreement with the City of SeaTac.

• The City of SeaTac and the Airport Building Department are required by 
state law to regulate the minimum requirements of the state adopted 
codes. 

• The Airport Building Department and the Port of Seattle Fire Dept. have 
separate, but many times overlapping regulatory responsibility for 
enforcing the codes. The ABD and POSFD work together with the City of 
SeaTac regarding our roles in the ILA.

6
119



2021 Building Code 

Code change examples:  
• Turning radius and clearance dimensions increased for accessibility 

(ADA). This is to accommodate electrically powered wheelchairs.
• The IBC includes Mass Timber as a code approved type of construction. 
• The definition of atrium changed to three stories instead of two, except 

hospitals and prisons.

7
120



Questions?

8
121

RETURN TO AGENDA


	2024_02_27_RM_Agenda_Linked
	2024_02_27_RM_8a_1
	2024_02_27_RM_8a_2
	2024_02_27_RM_8a_3
	2024_02_27_RM_8b_Memo_STOC-Port-Leases-and-CAM-Expenses
	2024_02_27_RM_8b_Attachment_STOC-Port-Leases-and-CAM-Expenses
	2024_02_27_RM_8c_Memo_2024-International-Agenda-Adoption
	2024_02_27_RM_8c_Presentation_2024-International-Agenda-Adoption
	2024 International Policy Priorities ADOPTION
	Overview 
	Slide Number 3
	International Engagement 
	2024 International Priorities
	2024 International Priorities 
	Next Steps

	2024_02_27_RM_10a_Order_Sound-Insulation-Repair-and-Replacement
	2024_02_27_RM_10b_Memo_2021-Building-Codes
	2024_02_27_RM_10b_Attachment_2021-Building-Codes
	2024_02_27_RM_10b_Presentation_2021-Building-Codes
	Adoption of the 2021 International Building Codes, with Washington State Amendments 
	Overview
	2021 Washington State Building Codes �State Codes helps to ensure buildings in the State are safe for occupants. 
	State Building Code Development�Code Council advises State Legislature on code issues.
	State Building Code Council
	Inter-Local Agreement�
	2021 Building Code 
	Questions?




